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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

 

-------------------------------------------------------------X
_________________,  INDIVIDUALLY AND ON 
BEHALF OF ALL OTHERS SIMILARLY 
SITUATED,  
   
 Plaintiffs,  
   
 vs.  
   
GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, JEFFREY R. 
IMMELT, and KEITH S. SHERIN, 
   
 Defendants.  
   
---------------------------------------------------------------X
 

 
 
 
CASE No.: 
 
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT  
 
 
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

 
Plaintiffs Dale Waters and the Western Heart Institute P.C. Retirement Plan, individually and 

on behalf of all other persons similarly situated, by their undersigned attorneys, for his complaint 

against Defendants, alleges the following based upon personal knowledge as to themselves and  their 

own acts, and information and belief as to all other matters, based upon, inter alia, the investigation 

conducted by and through their attorneys, which included, among other things, a review of 

Defendants’ public documents, conference calls and announcements made by defendants, United 

States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) filings, wire and press releases published by 
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and regarding General Electric Company (“GE”, or the “Company”), securities analysts’ reports and 

advisories about the Company, and information readily obtainable on the Internet.  Plaintiffs believe 

that substantial evidentiary support will exist for the allegations set forth herein after a reasonable 

opportunity for discovery.   

NATURE OF THE ACTION  

1. This is a federal securities class action on behalf of a class consisting of all persons 

other than Defendants who purchased the common stock and/or call options of GE during the period 

of time from September 25, 2008 through and including October 1, 2008 (the “Class Period”), 

seeking to recover damages caused by Defendants’ violations of federal securities laws and pursue 

remedies under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”).   

JURISDICTION AND VENUE  

2. The claims asserted herein arise under and pursuant to Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the 

Exchange Act, (15 U.S.C. §78j(b) and 78t(a)), and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder (17 C.F.R.  

§240.10b-5).   

3. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to §27 of 

the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. §78aa) and 28 U.S.C. § 1331.   

4. Venue is proper in this Judicial District pursuant to §27 of the Exchange Act, 15 

U.S.C.  § 78aa and 28 U.S.C.  § 1391(b), as a substantial part of the conduct complained of herein 

occurred in this District.  GE, a New York Corporation, maintains substantial offices and operations 

in this District and its common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange, which is 

headquartered in this District. 
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5. In connection with the acts, conduct and other wrongs alleged in this Complaint, 

Defendants, directly or indirectly, used the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, 

including but not limited to, the United States mails, interstate telephone communications and the 

facilities of the national securities exchange. 

PARTIES 

6. __________, as set forth in their accompanying certifications, incorporated by 

reference herein, purchased GE securities at artificially inflated prices during the Class Period and 

has been damaged thereby. 

7. Defendant GE is a New York Company, with its principal executive offices in 

Fairfield, Connecticut.  General Electric Company (GE) operates as a technology, media, and 

financial services company worldwide. It operates through four segments: GE Capital, Energy 

Infrastructure, Technology Infrastructure, and NBC Universal. The GE Capital segment offers an 

array of products and services that include commercial loans, operating leases, fleet management, 

financial programs, home loans, insurance, credit cards, personal loans, and other financial services. 

The Energy Infrastructure segment involves in the development, implementation, and improvement 

of products and technologies that harness various resources, such as wind, oil, gas, and water. The 

Technology Infrastructure segment focuses on building healthcare, transportation, and technology 

infrastructure. The NBC Universal segment develops, produces, and markets film, television, news, 

sports, and special events. 

8. Defendant Jeffrey I. Immelt (“Immelt”) is, and at all relevant times, was GE’s 

Chairman and CEO. 
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9. Defendant Keith R. Sherin (“Sherin”) is, and at all relevant times, was GE’s Vice 

Chairman and CFO. 

10. Immelt and Sherin are collectively referred to hereinafter as the “Individual 

Defendants.” 

11. During the Class Period, each of the Individual Defendants, as senior executive 

officers, agents, and/or directors of GE and its subsidiaries and affiliates, was privy to non-public 

information concerning the Company’s business, finances, products, markets, and present and future 

business prospects, via access to internal corporate documents, conversations and connections with 

other corporate officers and employees, attendance at management and Board of Directors meetings 

and committees thereof, and via reports and other information provided to them in connection 

therewith.  Because of their possession of such information, the Individual Defendants knew or 

recklessly disregarded that the adverse facts specified herein had not been disclosed to, and were 

being concealed from, the investing public. 

12. Because of the Individual Defendants' positions with the Company, they had access to 

the adverse undisclosed information about the Company’s business, operations, operational trends, 

financial statements, markets and present and future business prospects via access to internal 

corporate documents (including the Company’s operating plans, budgets and forecasts and reports of 

actual operations compared thereto), conversations and connections with other corporate officers and 

employees, attendance at management and Board of Directors meetings and committees thereof, and 

via reports and other information provided to them in connection therewith.    

13. It is appropriate to treat the Individual Defendants as a group for pleading purposes 

and to presume that dissemination of the false, misleading and incomplete information conveyed in 
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the Company’s public filings, press releases and other publications as alleged herein is the result of 

collective actions of the narrowly defined group of defendants identified above.  Each of the above 

officers and directors of GE and its subsidiaries and affiliates, by virtue of his position with the 

Company, directly participated in the management of the Company, was directly involved in the 

day-to-day operations of the Company at the highest levels, and was privy to confidential proprietary 

information concerning the Company and its business, operations, growth, financial statements, and 

financial condition, as alleged herein.  Said Defendants were involved in drafting, producing, 

reviewing and/or disseminating the false and misleading statements and information alleged herein, 

were aware, or recklessly disregarded, that the false and misleading statements regarding the 

Company  were being issued, and approved or ratified these statements, in violation of the federal 

securities laws. 

14. As officers, directors and controlling persons of a publicly-held company whose 

securities were and are registered with the SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act, and that was traded 

on the NYSE and governed by the provisions of the federal securities laws, the Individual 

Defendants each had a duty to disseminate accurate and truthful information promptly with respect 

to the Company's financial condition and performance, growth, operations, financial statements, 

business, markets, management, earnings and present and future business prospects, and to correct 

any previously-issued statements that had become materially misleading or untrue, so that the 

market price of the Company's publicly-traded securities would be based upon truthful and accurate 

information.  The Individual Defendants' misrepresentations and omissions during the Class Period 

violated these specific requirements and obligations. 
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15. The Individual Defendants participated in the drafting, preparation, and/or approval 

of the various public, shareholder, and investor reports and other communications complained of 

herein and were aware of, or recklessly disregarded, the misstatements contained therein and 

omissions therefrom, and were aware of their materially false and misleading nature.  Because of 

their Board membership and/or executive and managerial positions with GE, each of the Individual 

Defendants had access to the adverse undisclosed information about GE’s  financial condition and 

performance as particularized herein and knew (or recklessly disregarded) that these adverse facts 

rendered the positive representations made by or about GE and its business, and issued or adopted by 

the Company, materially false and misleading. 

16. The Individual Defendants, because of their positions of control and authority as 

officers, directors, agents, and/or controlling persons of the Company, were able to and did control 

the content of the various SEC filings, press releases and other public statements pertaining to the 

Company during the Class Period.  Each Individual Defendant was provided with copies of the 

documents alleged herein to be misleading prior to or shortly after their issuance and/or had the 

ability and/or opportunity to prevent their issuance or to cause them to be corrected.  Accordingly, 

each of the Individual Defendants is responsible for the accuracy of the public reports and press 

releases detailed herein and is therefore primarily liable for the representations contained therein. 

17. Each of the Defendants is liable as a participant in a fraudulent scheme and course of 

business that operated as a fraud or deceit on purchasers of GE securities by disseminating 

materially false and misleading statements and/or concealing material adverse facts.  The scheme (i) 

deceived the investing public regarding GE’s business, operations, management and the intrinsic 
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value of GE’s securities; and (ii) caused Plaintiffs and other members of the Class to purchase GE 

securities at artificially inflated prices. 

SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS 

18. The Class Period begins on September 25, 2008, when the Company held an update 

conference call that morning before the NYSE opened for trading. 

19. The purpose of the conference call was for the Company to update its financial 

guidance and to provide additional information about the Company’s financial condition.  

Defendants Immelt and Sherin participated in the call on behalf of the Company. 

20. During the call GE made numerous representations assuring the investing public that 

the GE had no problems in funding itself, did not require any long term financing, and did not 

require the underwriting of new equity for the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2008. 

21. During the conference call, defendant Sherin made the following statements on behalf 

of GE. 

• “So the priorities that we have undertaken here in the last few weeks, we're outlining today, 
start with maintaining a strong liquidity position. That starts with our commercial paper 
programs and our liquidity plans. We have great CP programs. We go direct to investors, so 
we're not going through brokers. We run the program in 11 currencies. About two-thirds of 
the CP business is in the U.S., the rest is global; it's spread across many countries. We have 
had no issues funding ourselves. Even in the last 10 days where you've had some 
significant disruptive days, we continue to see a flight to quality. We're funding on average 
at LIBOR less 25, and usually below the fed funds rate when you get to the  absolute dollar 
amounts.” 
 

• “That's up $20 billion since the beginning of the year, and we can take that higher. We've got 
a tremendous access to other sources here. And with our strong collections and originations 
management, we've built this plan not needing to issue any long-term debt in the fourth 
quarter. I think that's just a prudent place to be given the financial markets. Previously we've 
communicated that we completed 70 billion of long-term debt out of our total-year plan 
of around 80, and now we're saying we're done for the year. We may be opportunistic, 
but we don't need to do any more long-term debt this year.” 
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• “We've put a significant amount of capital to work at very low loan-to-value debt, senior 
secured debt positions, at great returns. I think that's been a tremendous thing for us to do to 
take advantage of the market opportunities that we've seen this year. And we're going to 
continue to de-emphasize equity. We are not underwriting, originating new equity here. 
We're going to continue to downsize that as we bring this portfolio down under 80 billion.” 
 

• So this is a proactive approach we've taken. It makes GE even safer. And third quarter is 
fully funded, and there's no long-term debt issuance required in the fourth quarter, 
which is a nice, strong statement about our cash flows and liquidity management. 
 

22. These statements were reiterated during the conference call and Defendants touted 

GE’s conservative and well positioned liquidity and cash position and flows for the Fourth Quarter. 

• <Q - Deane Dray>: Great. And then just to clarify on the funding outlook near term. That 
was clear that you don't need any further funding in 2008. I guess 10 days ago, you had said 
you had done 70 billion of an expected 80. How about the idea of pre-funding some of the 
obligations in 2009, and how aggressive might you be over the near term? 
 
<A - Keith Sherin>: That's a great question. I think right now what we've planned on 
for 2008 is that we do not need to do any long-term debt based on what we have here, 
and I think that's a prudent way to think about it because of some of the choppiness in 
the debt markets. For 2009, we built this plan; we have 67 billion of long-term debts, 
maturities, in GE Capital next year. And the base plan is built on being able to redo about 60 
billion of that. But if things are a little worse, we can manage our collections and 
originations and do significantly less than that. And if things are better, we wouldn't 
anticipate going above the 60 right now, because that's in balance for us right now on being 
able to bring our CP down to that 15%, 10 to 15% range, and also not needing to even issue 
all the same amount of debt as what matures next year. So I think we've got a conservative 
plan we put together here, and we're prepared. If it were tougher in the long-term debt 
markets, we don't need to do anywhere near that amount in next year if we had to. 
 
<Q - Jeffrey Sprague>: And just finally, Jeff, is the idea of any new equity still off the 
table?  You know, someone like a Mubadala [sic] all the sudden does some new equity as 
opposed to buying the stock in the new market. Is that type of thing open for discussion in 
any type of permutation? Maybe not just them, but others? 
 
<A - Jeffrey Immelt>: You know, Jeff, we just don't see it right now. Again, we feel 
very secure about how the funding looks and the strength of the company and the 
strength of the balance sheet. Cash flows are great. The  liquidity profile has been 
strong; it's now stronger. Leverage is better. And so we really believe in our business 
model and feel kind of secure that we're well-positioned here. 
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• <Q - John Inch>: Good morning. So I'm just wondering, in the short term, Keith, are you 
guys going to be tapping any of your backstop? I think you've got about 62 billion of bank 
lending facilities. Does any of that get tapped based on the disruption of CP markets? 
 

• <A - Keith Sherin>: Absolutely not. If you look – how do we run the place? We've got a 
commercial paper program that's broad and deep. The commercial paper market is 
$1.6 trillion. And if you look at our 61-day maturities, you really don't have any near 
term pressure of any magnitude. We have about $15 billion of cash liquidity that we keep 
in GE Capital, and that you can see on the balance sheet at the end of second quarter. We 
have over $20 billion of marketable securities with a significant piece of that pool that we 
can obviously repo if necessary. We have tremendous collections flexibility here. We have 
120 billion of committed maturities in the next 12 months out of our loans and leases. And 
finally, we have $650 billion of assets, and we have securitization platforms on every single 
asset class – real estate, aircraft, commercial loans and leases, credit cards. And that's not a 
source of liquidity today, but obviously if it had to be you could that. So – and then finally as 
you mentioned, we do have 62 billion of bank lines, we have over 70 institutions in there. 
They're all Double-A or better, there are no MAC clauses, but we absolutely do not have any 
 anticipation that we would be using those. 

 

23. These statements were materially false and misleading because, GE was not well-

positioned in terms of liquidity and cash-flows and required additional funding.  

24. On October 1, 2008 the Company announced that it planned to offer at least $12 

billion of common stock to the public.  Yet, no pricing information was provided to shareholders. 

25. On October 2, 2008, GE shocked the market when it announced, before market open, 

the pricing of its common stock offering.  GE priced 547,825,000 shares of its common stock at 

$22.25 per share—nearly a 10% discount from its previous trading day price of $24.50 per share. 

26. The October 2, 2008 announcement caused the Company’s stock to open trading at 

$22.83 per share that day, and the GE’s stock closed the day at $22.15 per share—down 9.6% of 

$2.35 per share from the previous day on extraordinary volume. 

PLAINTIFFS’ CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 
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27. Plaintiffs bring this action as a class action pursuant to Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure 23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf of a Class consisting of all persons who purchased who 

purchased the common stock and/or call options GE during the Class Period and who were damaged 

thereby.  Excluded from the Class are Defendants, the officers and directors of the Company at all 

relevant times, members of their immediate families and their legal representatives, heirs, successors 

or assigns and any entity in which defendants have or had a controlling interest.  

28. The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members is 

impracticable.  Throughout the Class Period, GE’s  securities were actively traded on the NYSE.  

While the exact number of Class members is unknown to Plaintiffs at this time and can only be 

ascertained through appropriate discovery, Plaintiffs believe that there are at least hundreds of 

members in the proposed Class.  Members of the Class may be identified from records maintained 

by GE or its transfer agent and may be notified of the pendency of this action by mail, using a form 

of notice customarily used in securities class actions. 

29. Plaintiffs’ claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class, as all 

members of the Class are similarly affected by Defendants’ wrongful conduct in violation of federal 

law that is complained of herein.   

30. Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members of the Class 

and has retained counsel competent and experienced in class and securities litigation. 

31. Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the Class and 

predominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of the Class.  Among the 

questions of law and fact common to the Class are: 
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(a)  whether the federal securities laws were violated by Defendants' acts as alleged 

herein; 

(b)  whether statements made by Defendants to the investing public during the Class 

Period misrepresented material facts about the business, operations and management of GE ; and 

(c)  to what extent the members of the Class have sustained damages and the proper 

measure of damages. 

32. A class action is superior to all other available methods for the fair and efficient 

adjudication of this controversy since joinder of all members is impracticable.  Furthermore, as the 

damages suffered by individual Class members may be relatively small, the expense and burden of 

individual litigation make it impossible for members of the Class to redress individually the wrongs 

done to them.  There will be no difficulty in the management of this action as a class action.  

Applicability of Presumption of Reliance: 
Fraud-on-the-Market Doctrine 

 
33. At all relevant times, the market for GE’s  common stock was an efficient  market for 

the following reasons, among others:  

(a) GE’s  stock met the requirements for listing, and was listed and actively traded on 

the NYSE, a highly efficient and automated market; 

(b) During the class period, on average,  several millions of shares of  GE stock were traded on a 

weekly basis, demonstrating a very active and broad market for GE stock and permitting a very strong 

presumption of an efficient market;  

(c) As a regulated issuer, GE filed with the SEC periodic public reports during the Class 

Period;  
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(d) GE regularly communicated with public investors via established market 

communication mechanisms, including regular disseminations of press releases on the national 

circuits of major newswire services and other wide-ranging public disclosures, such as 

communications with the financial press and other similar reporting services;  

(e) GE was followed by several securities analysts employed by major brokerage 

firms who wrote reports that were distributed to the sales force and certain customers of their 

respective brokerage firms during the Class Period. Each of these reports was publicly available 

and entered the public marketplace; 

(f) Numerous NASD member firms were active market-makers in GE stock at all times 

during the Class Period;  and 

(g) Unexpected material news about GE was rapidly reflected in and incorporated into 

the Company’s stock price during the Class Period.  

34. As a result of the foregoing, the market for GE’s common stock promptly digested 

current information regarding GE from all publicly available sources and reflected such information 

in GE’s stock price.  Under these circumstances, all purchasers of GE’s common stock during the 

Class Period suffered similar injury through their purchase of GE’s common stock at artificially 

inflated prices, and a presumption of reliance applies.  

NO SAFE HARBOR 

35. The statutory safe harbor provided for forward-looking statements under certain 

circumstances does not apply to any of the allegedly false statements pleaded in this Complaint.  

Many of the specific statements pleaded herein were not identified as “forward-looking statements” 

when made.  To the extent there were any forward-looking statements, there were no meaningful 
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cautionary statements identifying important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially 

from those in the purportedly forward-looking statements.  Alternatively, to the extent that the 

statutory safe harbor does apply to any forward-looking statements pleaded herein, Defendants are 

liable for those false forward-looking statements because at the time each of those forward-looking 

statements was made, the particular speaker knew that the particular forward-looking statement was 

false, and/or the forward-looking statement was authorized and/or approved by an executive officer 

of GE who knew that those statements were false when made. 

LOSS CAUSATION/ECONOMIC LOSS 

36. During the Class Period, the Defendants engaged in a scheme to deceive the market 

and a course of conduct that artificially inflated GE securities prices and operated as a fraud or 

deceit on purchasers of GE stock by misrepresenting the Company’s financial condition and 

business prospects.  Once the Defendants’ misrepresentations and fraudulent conduct were disclosed 

to the market, GE’s stock price reacted negatively as the artificial inflation was removed from it.  As 

a result of their purchases of GE securities during the Class Period, Plaintiffs and other members of 

the Class suffered economic loss. 

37. Defendants’ false and misleading statements had the intended effect and caused GE 

securities to trade at artificially inflated levels throughout the Class Period. 

38. As investors and the market became aware of GE's prior misstatements and omissions 

and that GE's actual financial condition and business prospects were, in fact, not as represented, GE 

securities prices reacted negatively, damaging investors. 
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FIRST CLAIM 

Violation of Section 10(b) Of 
The Exchange Act Against and Rule 10b-5 

Promulgated Thereunder Against All Defendants 
 

39.  Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation contained above as if fully set 

forth herein.  

40. During the Class Period, Defendants carried out a plan, scheme and course of conduct 

which was intended to and, throughout the Class Period, did: (1) deceive the investing public, 

including Plaintiffs and other Class members, as alleged herein; and (2) cause Plaintiffs and other 

members of the Class to purchase and sell GE’s securities at artificially inflated and distorted  prices. 

 In furtherance of this unlawful scheme, plan and course of conduct, Defendants, and each of them, 

took the actions set forth herein. 

41. Defendants (a) employed devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud; (b) made untrue 

statements of material fact and/or omitted to state material facts necessary to make the statements 

not misleading; and (c) engaged in acts, practices, and a course of business that operated as a fraud 

and deceit upon the purchasers of the Company’s securities in an effort to maintain artificially high 

market prices for GE’s securities in violation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 

thereunder.  All Defendants are sued either as primary participants in the wrongful and illegal 

conduct charged herein or as controlling persons as alleged below. 

42. Defendants, individually and in concert, directly and indirectly, by the use, means or 

instrumentalities of interstate commerce and/or of the mails, engaged and participated in a 

continuous course of conduct to conceal adverse material information about the business, operations 

and future prospects of GE as specified herein. 
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43. These Defendants employed devices, schemes and artifices to defraud while in 

possession of material adverse non-public information and engaged in acts, practices, and a course 

of conduct as alleged herein in an effort to assure investors of GE’s value and performance and 

continued substantial growth, which included the making of, or participation in the making of, 

untrue statements of material facts and omitting to state material facts necessary in order to make the 

statements made about GE and its business operations and future prospects in the light of the 

circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, as set forth more particularly herein, 

and engaging in transactions, practices and a course of business that operated as a fraud and deceit 

upon the purchasers of GE’s securities during the Class Period. 

44. Each of the Individual Defendants’ primary liability, and controlling person liability, 

arises from the following facts: (1) the Individual Defendants were high-level executives,  directors, 

and/or agents at the Company during the Class Period and members of the Company’s management 

team or had control thereof; (2) each of these Defendants, by virtue of his responsibilities and 

activities as a senior officer and/or director of the Company, was privy to and participated in the 

creation, development and reporting of the Company=s financial condition; (3) each of these 

defendants enjoyed significant personal contact and familiarity with the other Defendants and was 

advised of and had access to other members of the Company’s management team, internal reports 

and other data and information about the Company’s finances, operations, and sales at all relevant 

times; and (4) each of these Defendants was aware of the Company’s dissemination to the investing 

public of information that they knew or recklessly disregarded to be materially false and misleading. 

45. Defendants had actual knowledge of the misrepresentations and omissions of material 

facts set forth herein, or acted with reckless disregard for the truth in that they failed to ascertain and 
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to disclose such facts, even though such facts were available to them.  Such Defendants’ material 

misrepresentations and/or omissions were done knowingly or recklessly and for the purpose and 

effect of concealing from the investing public GE’s operating condition and future business 

prospects and supporting the artificially inflated price of its securities.  As demonstrated by 

Defendants’ overstatements and misstatements of the Company’s financial condition throughout the 

Class Period, Defendants, if they did not have actual knowledge of the misrepresentations and 

omissions alleged, were reckless in failing to obtain such knowledge by deliberately refraining from 

taking those steps necessary to discover whether those statements were false or misleading. 

46. As a result of the dissemination of the materially false and misleading information 

and failure to disclose material facts, as set forth above, the market price of GE’s securities was 

artificially inflated during the Class Period.  In ignorance of the fact that market prices of GE’s 

publicly-traded securities were artificially inflated, and relying directly or indirectly on the false and 

misleading statements made by defendants, or upon the integrity of the market in which the 

securities trade, and/or on the absence of material adverse information that was known to or 

recklessly disregarded by Defendants but not disclosed in public statements by Defendants during 

the Class Period, Plaintiffs and the other members of the Class acquired GE securities during the 

Class Period at artificially high prices and were or will be damaged thereby. 

47. At the time of said misrepresentations and omissions, Plaintiffs and other members of 

the Class were ignorant of their falsity, and believed them to be true.  Had Plaintiffs and the other 

members of the Class and the marketplace known the truth regarding GE’s financial results, which 

were not disclosed by defendants, Plaintiffs and other members of the Class would not have 
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purchased or otherwise acquired their GE securities, or, if they had acquired such  securities during 

the Class Period, they would not have done so at the artificially inflated prices that they paid. 

48. By virtue of the foregoing, Defendants have violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange 

Act, and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. 

49. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ wrongful conduct, Plaintiffs and the 

other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their respective purchases and sales 

of the Company’s securities during the Class Period. 

50. This action was filed within two years of discovery of the fraud and within five years 

of Plaintiffs’ purchases of securities giving rise to the cause of action. 

SECOND CLAIM 

Violation of Section 20(a) Of  
The Exchange Act Against the Individual Defendants 

51. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation contained above as if fully set 

forth herein.  

52. The Individual Defendants acted as controlling persons of GE within the meaning of 

Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act as alleged herein.  By virtue of their high-level positions, agency, 

and their ownership and contractual rights, participation in and/or awareness of the Company’s 

operations and/or intimate knowledge of the false financial statements filed by the Company with 

the SEC and disseminated to the investing public, the Individual Defendants had the power to 

influence and control, and did influence and control, directly or indirectly, the decision-making of 

the Company, including the content and dissemination of the various statements that Plaintiffs 

contend are false and misleading.  The Individual Defendants were provided with or had unlimited 

access to copies of the Company’s reports, press releases, public filings and other statements alleged 
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by Plaintiffs to have been misleading prior to and/or shortly after these statements were issued and 

had the ability to prevent the issuance of the statements or to cause the statements to be corrected. 

53. In particular, each of these Defendants had direct and supervisory involvement in the 

day-to-day operations of the Company and, therefore, is presumed to have had the power to control 

or influence the particular transactions giving rise to the securities violations as alleged herein, and 

exercised the same. 

54. As set forth above, GE and the Individual Defendants each violated Section 10(b) and 

Rule 10b-5 by their acts and omissions as alleged in this Complaint.   

55. By virtue of their positions as controlling persons, the Individual Defendants are 

liable pursuant to Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act.  As a direct and proximate result of 

Defendants’ wrongful conduct, Plaintiffs and other members of the Class suffered damages in 

connection with their purchases of the Company’s securities during the Class Period. 

56. This action was filed within two years of discovery of the fraud and within five years 

of Plaintiffs’ purchases of securities giving rise to the cause of action. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for relief and judgment, as follows: 

(a)  Determining that this action is a proper class action, designating Plaintiffs  as 

Lead Plaintiff and certifying Plaintiffs as a class representative under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of 

Civil Procedure and Plaintiffs’ counsel as Lead Counsel; 

(b)  Awarding compensatory damages in favor of Plaintiffs and the other Class 

members against all Defendants, jointly and severally, for all damages sustained as a result of 

Defendants’ wrongdoing, in an amount to be proven at trial, including interest thereon; 



 
 19 

(c)  Awarding Plaintiffs and the Class their reasonable costs and expenses incurred in 

this action, including counsel fees and expert fees; and 

(d)  Such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper. 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

Plaintiffs hereby demand a trial by jury. 

     
  Dated: October 3, 2008   Respectfully submitted, 
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